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THE CHAI RVAN: Good afternoon,
| adi es and gentlenen. 1'd like to call to order
this neeting of the Connecticut Siting Council
t oday, Thursday, Cctober 6, 2016, at 3 p.m M
nane is Robin Stein. [|'m Chairman of the Siting
Counci | .

G her nenbers of the Counci
present are M. Hannon, designee fromthe
Depart nent of Energy and Environnental Protection;
M. Lu, designee fromthe Public Utilities
Regul atory Authority; M. Ashton; Dr. Kl enens; and
M. Lynch.

Menbers of the staff present are
Mel ani e Bachman, our Executive Director Staff
Attorney; and M. Perrone, our siting anal yst.

This hearing is held pursuant to
the provisions of Title 16 of the Connecti cut
Ceneral Statutes and of the Uniform Adm ni strative
Procedure Act upon an application fromCellco
partnership d/b/a Verizon for a certificate of
envi ronnental conpatibility and public need for
t he constructi on, nmaintenance and operations of a
t el ecommuni cations facility | ocated at 520 Bail ey
H Il Road in Killingly, Connecticut. This

application was received by the Council on
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July 26, 2016.

As a rem nder to all,
off-the-record conmuni cation with a nenber of the
Council or a nenber of the council staff upon the
merits of this application is prohibited by | aw
The applicant to this proceeding is, as |
menti oned, Cellco Partnership, Verizon. Attorney
Baldwin is the representative.

W will proceed in accordance with
t he prepared agenda, copies of which are
avai l able, | believe, next to that door to ny
ri ght behind the podium Al so avail able are
copies of the Council's citizen guide to Siting
Counci | procedures.

At the end of this afternoon's
evidentiary session we will recess and resune
again at 7 p.m for the public comrent session.
The 7 p.m public conmment session wll be reserved
for the public to make brief oral statenments into
t he record.

I wish to note for those who are
here and for the benefit of your friends and
nei ghbors who are unable to join us for the public
comment session, that your or they nay send

witten statenents to the Council wthin 30 days




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

of the date hereof and such witten statenents
wll be given the sane weight as if spoken at the
heari ng.

A verbatimtranscript will be made
of this hearing and deposited with the town
clerk's office in Killingly for the conveni ence of
t he public.

I wish to call your attention to
t hose itens shown on the hearing program nmarked as
Roman nuneral 1D, items 1 through 69. Does the
appl i cant have any objection to the itens that the
Council has adm nistratively noticed?

MR- BALDW N  No, M. Chairnman.

THE CHAI RMAN: Accordingly, the
Counci |l adm nistratively notices these existing
docunents, statenents and comments.

Attorney Baldwin, will you present
your w tness panel for the purposes of taking the
oat h?

MR. BALDW N. Thank you
M. Chairman. Kenneth Baldwin with Robi nson &
Col e on behalf of the applicant Cellco
Par t ner shi p, doi ng busi ness as Verizon Wreless.
Qur wtnesses for this afternoon are as foll ows.

From Veri zon wreless, M. Tony
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Bef era, Manager of Real Estate Project
| npl enentati on; and M. Ray Luke Paradis, the
radi o frequency engi neer responsible for the
Bailey H Il Cell site.

To ny left is Doug Roberts with
Hudson Desi gn G oup, the project engineers. And
at ny right, your left, the far end of the table
I's Dean CGustafson, the senior wetlands scienti st
and professional soil scientist; and M ke
Li bertine, the Director of Siting and Perm tting
with All-Points Technol ogy Corporation, the
envi ronnental consultants working on this project.

And | would offer themto be sworn
at this tine.

THE CHAI RVAN: Pl ease rise to take

t he oat h.

ANTHONY BEFERA

RAY L UKE PARADI S

DOUGLAS J. ROBERTS,

MI CHAEL LI BERTI NE,

DEAN GUSTAFSON,
call ed as witnesses, being first duly sworn
by the Executive D rector, were exam ned and

testified on their oaths as foll ows:
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MR, BALDW N M. Chairnman, the
applicant has four exhibits. They're listed in
t he heari ng program under Roman 2, subsection B,
itens 1 through 4. And | offer themat this tinme
for identification purposes, only subject to
verification by the w tnesses.

If I could ask ny witnesses to
answer the follow ng questions. D d you prepare,
assi st in and supervise the preparation of those
exhibits listed in the hearing programli sted
under Roman 2, section B, itens 1 through 4?

M. Custafson?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yes.

MR. BALDW N M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes.

MR BALDWN M. Befera?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes.

MR BALDW N: M. Paradis?

THE W TNESS (Paradi s): Yes.

MR BALDW N: M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

MR, BALDWN. And do you have any
corrections, nodifications, or clarifications to
offer to any of those exhibits?

M. Qustafson?
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THE W TNESS (Qustafson): | have
one clarification, and this was raised during the
site wal k earlier this afternoon regardi ng the
di stance fromthe proposed facility to nearby
wet | and resource areas.

The nearest on-property wetl and
resource i s approximately 425 feet to the
sout heast, and that's associated with a | arge pond
| ocated on the property. The nearest off-site
wet | and resource is identified as wetland one in
t he docunentation in the application. And that's
approxi nately 500 feet to the sout hwest of the
proposed Verizon facility, and that's the di stance
to the wetland, not the property boundary.

MR BALDWN M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes, |
have one correction -- excuse ne. On Exhibit 4
which is the sign posting affidavit there was an
I ncorrect address in line itemnunber 6. And that
should actually read that the sign was posted
along Bailey H Il Road in front of the site, and
not Great Pasture Road.

MR. BALDW N. Thank you.

M. Befera?

THE W TNESS (Befera): No.
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MR BALDW N: M. Paradis?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): No.

MR BALDWN M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | have a
few corrections and a nodification.

First off, as we |ike to use
instead of a 12 by 20 new platform we're | ooking
to increase that to a 12 by 26 platform It was
brought to our attention nore recently that would
allow us nore additional flexibility on that. And
iIf the site is approved we'll reflect that as in
the D and M pl ans.

My next comment is regarding the
I nterrogatori es on page 13, question nunber 33.
Since we're after October 1st, the Connecti cut
bui | di ng code has changed and is the 2016,
Connecticut State Building Code and TI A/ El A 222
would be G W have, of course, the town by town
W nd speed reflected in the | atest buil ding code.

Under the docket itself we have
just a couple clarifications. Under tab 1, on
page 6, again item nunber 3, was the standard
222F. That's now G under the new Connecti cut
bui | di ng code.

And under tab 1, page 7, under

10
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noi se we reference a prefabricated equi pnent
shelter. W're using exterior equipnent as shown
on the drawings. And that is all | have.

MR BALDWN And with those
corrections and clarifications is the information
contained in those exhibits true and accurate to
t he best of your know edge?

M. Custafson?

THE W TNESS ( GQustafson): Yes.

MR BALDWN M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): Yes, it

MR BALDWN M. Befera?
THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes.
MR BALDWN M. Paradis?
THE W TNESS (Paradis): Yes.
MR BALDWN M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes, it is.

MR. BALDW N  And do you adopt the
information in those exhibits as your testinony
t his afternoon?

M. Custafson?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): | do.

MR. BALDW N M. Libertine?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Yes.

11
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MR BALDWN M. Befera?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes.

MR BALDWN M. Paradis?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): Yes.

MR BALDWN And M. Roberts?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes.

MR BALDWN | offer themas ful
exhi bits, M. Chairnman.

THE CHAI RVAN: The exhibits are
admtted. We'll now begin with the
cross-exam nation starting with staff,

M. Perrone.

MR. PERRONE: Thank you,
M. Chai r man.

Wiile we're on the topic of
technical corrections, | just had one possible
one. On page "I" of the application it states
that the property owner is Tri-Lakes, LLC. But on
page 17 it says that the property is owned by the
Town. |Is Tri-Lakes, LLC, the correct property
owner ?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes.

MR, PERRONE: Can you tell us what
t he subject property is currently used for? |

know t he applicati on says undevel oped, but there's
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access and there's a gate. Wat is its current
use?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Doug
Roberts. Yes, right nowit's basically al nost
forestland. It was originally part of a |arger
devel opnent that | believe was abandoned nany
years ago. And those access roads are just
private access roads down to the | ake.

MR PERRONE: Are there any on-site
residential structures?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Not to ny
know edge.

MR PERRONE: Did the applicant fly
a ball oon today?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): M ke
Li bertine with APT. Excuse ne, yes. W've had a
red heliumfilled ball oon, excuse ne, about 4 feet
in dianeter tethered to the full string hei ght of
150 feet since about quarter to 8 this norning,
and we'll keep that up until 6 p.m

MR, PERRONE: Coul d you descri be
t he weather conditions at the field review ball oon
flight?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine):

Certainly. W've had great weat her

13
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today in terns of keeping the balloon aloft and at
its full height for the nost part. W have great
visibility over several mles and wi nds have been
probably about three mles an hour or less with
sone gusts in the five to six-mle an hour range.

I'd say, as is typical this time of
year during the mdpart portion of the day, about
the tine of the site walk we were getting a little
bit of defection as you probably saw, but for the
nost part it's been -- it's been naintained at the
full height.

MR. PERRONE: So for the 150 feet,
Is that like the string length to the bottom of
the ball oon, or the height to the top of the
bal | oon?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): No, it
was the, actually, the fornmer. W do tend to use
the full strength height of the proposed hei ght
and what that allows us to do is to have about an
additional four feet or so on top. So if we do
get sone defection you're still able to see it.

So it is, as you had suggest ed.

The bottom of the balloon is at the full 150, the
top of the balloon at approximtely 154 feet.

VMR, PERRONE: And | understand the

14
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applicant put up a sign and we have the sign
affidavit. But generally is it correct to say
that the sign included information regardi ng the
project and the Council's public hearing?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): That is
correct.

MR. PERRONE: Did the applicant
recei ve any comments or recommendations fromthe
Town of Killingly?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): No.

MR. PERRONE: And | understand from
the interrogatory responses that no carrier or the
Town had expressed an interest on collocating.

I'd like to ask the sane question as an update.
To date has the applicant received any interest in
col I ocati ng?

THE W TNESS (Befera): No.

MR. PERRONE: Wuld the applicant
offer space on the tower for energency, for
nmuni ci pal energency services antennas if
request ed?

THE W TNESS (Befera): W would
li ke that to be conditioned. W want to. W've
run into i ssues recently where the conpany, when

they get a substantial tower inventory, it sells

15
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It on us.

And we had an instance in Vernont
where the tower conpany that the conpany Veri zon
sold themto woul dn't honor our proni se that we
made in the hearing. And they wanted to charge
the Town rent to put -- to put their stuff on the
tower that we told themthey could.

Soif it were a condition they
can't deny it. So by all neans, we woul d
certainly like to do that, but in a way that
cannot be reversed should the conpany sell the
t ower .

THE CHAI RMAN:. M. Lynch has a
fol |l ow up questi on.

MR LYNCH. In the condition you
just referenced was that a new tower, an existing
tower with the nunicipal equi pnent already on it?
And did you have a contract of any type wth the
Town?

THE W TNESS (Befera): No. There
was no contract with the Town. The problemthat
arose was the town took several years to get their
funding. Had they had their equipnent when we
still owned the tower it would have been fine, but

by the tinme they had the funding to purchase their
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equi pnment to put up on the tower we no | onger
owned the tower.

So -- but of course, if it was a
condition of the approval it goes with the sale.

MR LYNCH. | understand. | just
wanted to get a little clarification. Thank you.

MR. PERRONE: M. Roberts, given
the location of the tower on the subject property,
is it correct to say that no yield point would be
necessary to ensure that the setback radius
remains within the property boundari es?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is
correct, M. Perrone.

MR. PERRONE: |s that also correct
to say that no | andscaping is proposed around the
conmpound because of the wooded areas around it?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That is
correct.

MR. PERRONE: | understand there's
no tree clearing, but just to be a bit nore
preci se, would you have to renpve sone brush or
woul d there potentially be sone trees under
Ssi X inches?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes. Most

of -- no trees over siXx inches would be renobved.

17
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But yeah, there's a |ot of scrub oak and
m scel | aneous vegetation that woul d need to be
cleared for the conpound area.

MR. PERRONE: And turning to sheet
Al, the conpound plan, the conmpound draw ng, it
nmentions the crushed stone on the conpound service
over Mrafi fabric, Mi-r-a-f-i. Wat does that
fabric do/prevent? Wed growh?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): That's
exactly correct. |It's stabilization as well as
preventi ng weeds t hroughout.

MR. PERRONE: And as far as the
access, | know there's two pieces to it. There's
an existing and proposed, so a total |ength of
sonething |like 674. So with the el evations woul d
t he average grade be sonething like 5 percent?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): | would
venture to guess even |less than that.

MR. PERRONE: Ckay. M. Libertine,
a fewvisibility questions. | understand in the
past when we sonetines see an average tree hei ght
in the visibility analysis -- is it done currently
now with the lidar and updated nodel s where you
don't need an average tree hei ght?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Well,




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

19

yes. The sinple answer is, yes. W are doing
things differently wiwth the advent of availability
of lidar data in its various fornms. W have a
fairly robust data set for portions of the state.
So where we do, rather than use the ol d nodel

I nputs -- which at tinmes we have to because of the
limtations of where the data is avail abl e.

As you' re suggesting, we had
assi gned an average tree height to the entire
forested | ayers that were popul ated within our
study area. So it was assuned to be uniform
al though we know in the real world that it's not,
but that was sonmewhat of the limtation of the
dat a.

Wth the new |idar data we have the
ability to do sone analysis in @S such that each
of the individual trees are tallied in ternms of
their height. So that nodul ation that you get in
the real world is actually then reflected. It
gives us a little bit nore precision.

Li ke anything, it has its pros and
its cons, but that is the distinction. So that's
why you're not seeing that particul ar statenment
that we used to make and that assunption that we

put it there.
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Il will say in that this area the
trees are in the 65 to 70-foot range on average.
As you can see fromdriving through the area it's
very, very densely wooded and sparsely popul at ed.

MR. PERRONE: Regardi ng the photo
sinmul ations, are those based on 150 feet? O
because of the crane are they nore conservative at
1607

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): No, the
one photo sinulation we were able to actually do
was scaled to reflect the 150-foot height. W --
we did have it at 160 originally, because at the
time when we did our work and the reason the
hei ght of the crane was a little taller, the
radi of requency engi neers were out trying to decide
exactly what hei ght.

But no, we actually had it scal ed
off both in the field as well as -- on the
conputer as well. So it's 150 is what's being
reflected. Unfortunately we didn't -- | don't
know if it's good or bad. W don't -- we don't
have a |l ot of shots that really show nuch
visibility, so we didn't have the opportunity to
really do too many sinulations on this particular

pr oj ect.
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MR. PERRONE: But all the photo
sine are at 150. They're scal ed-back?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): That's
correct.

MR. PERRONE: Wthin the view shed
area are there any state scenic or recreational
resources in that area?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): There are
none. There is sone state forestl and that
popul ates a portion, but there are no scenic
areas. This is, no scenic roads, no historic
resources or the Ilike.

MR. PERRONE: Looking at the
visibility areas | see nost of it is in the center
of the view shed nmap, but there are sone to the
west in the Mashentuck Mountain area. And |
believe that's Ma-s-h-e-n-t-u-c-k for the
transcri pt.

M. Libertine, could you generally
descri be the views of the tower fromthe
Mashent uck Mount ai n area?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): |
couldn't access. | went over as close as | could
to there on the roads, but really could not get

access.
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The reason, our conputer nodel was
show ng that there mght be sone visibility on
that, what 1'll call, the eastern shoul der | ooking
back towards the site. So not being able to field
verify it |I felt it was inportant to | eave it
t here.

My guess is, at best, during | eaf
off if you're |Iooking through the trees and you're
on the slope at the right point. You nay be able
to see the very top of the tower, but that's
purely just based on ne taking a | ook at the
t opogr aphy, intervening vegetation, that type of
t hi ng.

It's not going to be sonething that
is going to be significantly above the treeline.
That, |I'm confident of that.

MR, PERRONE: Turning to RF issues,
| understand the power density anal ysis was
performed wth the standard worst-case. |
understand sone carriers wll use, like, a 10 dB
reduction to account for an antenna pattern, or
you end up with a percent MPE that's about 1
tenth. Does that give a reasonabl e approxi mati on?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): So you're

tal ki ng about the study that's done to show what

22
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t he power around the site is?

MR, PERRONE: Yes.

THE W TNESS (Paradis): | just used
nodel s that are set up and used the cal cul ati ons
provided to ne. | don't know the details of those
calculations. | just know that | have ranges
where | have to operate within, wthin those
ranges for safety.

MR, LYNCH. Coul d you speak up,
pl ease?

MR, PERRONE: Thank you. That's
all | have.

THE CHAI RVAN:  Thank you. W'l
now continue with questions from nenbers of the
Counci | .

Dr. Kl enens?

DR KLEMENS: Thank you,

M. Chai r man.

Though | nentioned this out on the
site walk, I"lIl nmention it again. Under the
corrections on all the various propagation maps
the site is referred to as a wireless snall-cel
facility, yet on the locator map it's called a
proposed nonopol e t ower.

For the record, maybe you'd like to
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clarify what it is you' re putting there?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Thank
you, Dr. Klenens. You're absolutely correct and
that's -- in the legend itself it's incorrectly
| abeled as a small-cell facility and that it
should be -- this is the macro site. Thank you.

DR. KLEMENS:. | just have very few
questions about the ecol ogy of the area and
wet | ands. And they're both kind of odd questions,
so bear with ne.

In the field today |I noticed a
community of bare oak, nyrica salicifolia, pitch
pi ne, sweet fern conptonia, and this is all, to
nme, basically a serotinus community. And I'd |ike
to know additional protections you're
contenplating placing a facility like this in an
area that is periodically propagated and
mai nt ai ned by bur ni ng.

And if you maybe need -- | guess
where I'"'mgoing with this, in the field you took
great pride in saying you' re not going to clear
much. And I'mturning that around, is that you
have a community out there, serotinus, which is a
fire maintained. Fire, the pitch pine, the bare

oak, that's all fire nmaintai ned pl ants.

24
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So ny question to you, and | don't
know who to answer that is, are the standard
conmpound clearing restrictions adequate to protect
this froma fire, which given the nature of that
pl ant community can and wi |l happen?

A sort of | ong roundabout question
taki ng ecology, noving it to engineering. |Is what
you're doing going to be protected fromthe fires
that invariably go through that type of habitat as
to how it's maintai ned?

MR BALDWN |I'mgoing to ask for
alittle bit nore tinme, Dr. Klenens. |'ve been
doing this a long tine and that's the first tinme
|'ve heard that one. But if you don't mnd, 1'd
like to just kind of give that a little bit nore
t hought, and then have Doug and M ke per haps
address it.

DR KLEMENS: Let ne be clear, it's
not a concern about the habitat. M concern is
you're placing a facility there with a | ot of
equi pnent and you nay, you know, you're always
trying not to clear nuch, but in this case you nay
need to clear nore to protect your facility. |'m
just throwng that out there. That's the first

t hi ng.
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The next thing is, because it is
the sort of habitat that | ooks great to hognosed
snake, and | woul d hope that maybe as you go
forward with this, make you have some sort of
protection, a way to protect the hognosed snake as
you have at other habitats. | know there's not a
NDDB record for there, but the habitat is really
excel | ent.

THE W TNESS (GQustafson): Dean
Gustafson. | would -- | would agree, Dr. Kl enens.
It's not technically pine barren habitat, but it
has a ot of simlar characteristics and it has,
you know, good, sandy accessibly drained gl aci al
till soils. So | agree that it has the potenti al
to support the hognosed snake.

We didn't observe any while we were
out doi ng our investigation work, but as you know
that snake is extrenely difficult to survey for.
So just because we didn't see it doesn't nmean it
doesn't have the potential to exist there.

So what | woul d propose i s what
we' ve done on simlar projects and including sites
i n the past where we've have had hognosed snake,
Is to enpl oy sonme protective neasures including

installing a restrictive barrier around the nain
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conpound construction zone and then contractor
awar eness trai ni ng.

And t hen taking special precautions
for the contractor for when he comes up the
exi sting access road in case, you know, there's a
snake basking in the sun in the open area so we
can avoid any unintentional take of hognosed snake
wth the construction of the facility.

DR KLEMENS: That's great.
Certainly | think the hognosed snakes appreci ate
that. And you're right. | nean, | worked in
Plainfield for ten years on various sites |ike
that and only once saw a hognose, a big gravid
f emal e hognose one evening. They're very
secretive.

The |l ast one is a very strange
question, and | sort of tipped ny hand to that out
in the field. And it has to do wth the way we
actually track things. And if you | ook on the
| ocati on map that you have at the front, the
t opographi ¢ map, you'll probably see at the very
ri ght-hand corner in Rhode |sland sonething called
the Bal mof G| ead Swanp, under Jeremiah Hill.
It's right sort of off on the | ocator nmap.

M ke, if you | ook up you JE for
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Jeremah. You wll see the swanp right belowit.

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yeah, |
see it. | have it.

DR KLEMENS: This really raises an
interesting problemfor ne as a conservati oni st.
That swanp and all the springs on Jerem ah Hi |l
are docunented sites for spring sal ananders, which
both in Rhode |Island and in Connecticut are
t hr eat ened.

And it's kind of interesting. You
know, had this been in Connecticut the bl ob would
have been open, the whole site, but it's not. But
| just would ask you again for the record, as you
know, it requires spring breakouts. And | believe
you said in the field there was nothing that, on
the site or near the site that woul d be consi dered
t hat type of habitat?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): That's
correct. Qur -- because the wetland resources
that are approximate to the proposed facility are
so distant, our study area was |arger than what we
typically do. 1It's generally 2 to 3 hundred feet.
In this case, you know, we're dealing with the
study area that's about 500 feet around the

proposed devel opnent activities.
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The nearest on-site, as |'ve
I ndicated earlier, is the nearest pond system
that's pretty well in size in a topographic
depression. That bank that's identified in the --
in the application is a pretty well established
bank. There's no seepage associated with that
shoreline of the pond.

And then the -- the small wetl and
systemthat's | ocated just off site near, kind of
along Bailey H Il road is -- there's a
depressional systemw th a depressed water table.
It's not a seepage system |It's kind of a surface
wat er depressional system So we didn't find any
wet | and resources that had any spring type
hydraulic characteristics that could potentially
support spring sal anander.

DR KLEMENS: GCkay. And in no
spring houses or anything scattered around the
property near the site?

THE W TNESS (Qustafson): Yeah, |
didn't cone across any during ny wetl and
i nvesti gati on.

DR KLEMENS: Thank you. That's
all the questions | had, M. Chairnman.

THE CHAI RVAN:.  Thank you.
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M. Ashton?
MR, ASHTON:. Ckay. | don't have
much. 1've got two here. | don't have nmuch. The

first one | have is the duration of the | ease
period is five years and then there's, what?
Three or four, or five-year periods where a | ease
can be renewed. |Is that correct?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes, sir.

MR. ASHTON: We've had sone
experi ence, limted, but nonethel ess al arm ng
where at the end of the | ease period the property
owner has kicked off the cell tower, which I find
sonewhat alarmng if we're building up a system of
cell sites that is going to becone our prinary
mechani sm or neans of communi cati on.

What kind of options do you have at
the end to prevent getting kicked off the site?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Convincing
t hem - -

MR. ASHTON: The answer i s none.
Just say it?

THE W TNESS (Befera): The answer
I's none, but the only -- the only recourse we
woul d have woul d be noney.

MR. ASHTON: Al right. Gyven the
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fact that your -- if ny experience wth real
estate is anything |li ke what you are, you're
payi ng a substantial portion of the property val ue
up front.

Wiy woul d t he applicant not
consi der purchasing that site, or otherw se
encunbering it for a very long period of tine?

And 20 years ain't |long, believe ne.

THE W TNESS (Befera): | think that
t he conpany's position is always to -- has al ways
been to -- to obtain control of these properties

under a | ease expense scenari o, as opposed to a
capital expenditures scenario. And | think that
that gets into accounting i ssues and tax
consequences that | amnot qualified --

MR, ASHTON: You're going to be
droppi ng three quarters of a mllion bucks on this
site when you throw all the nuts and bolts and the
whistles and so forth intoit. In ny mnd the
I ncrenental cost of a pernanent easenent, for
exanple, can't be that nmuch, not on a
hundr ed- by- hundr ed parcel .

If you' re taking the 600 acres |
coul d understand it, but | would hope that you --

and I|"'m |l ooking at M. Baldw n, too, because he's
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got his little pinkies in a lot of sites and I
respect his judgnent. But I"'malittle worried
about this as to what we're going to find, with a
few others that are | ooking very much younger than
are | ooking like ne.

Time flies fast. |'ve been on the
Council for 20 years plus a few nonths, and it is
alarmng to nme to think that for whatever reason
there could be a rash of requests that say, we
want you off. And I don't know what the option
I S.

I mean, 1'll press alittle
further. 1s satellite a clear and unequi vocal
option for a site that you have to vacate?

THE W TNESS (Befera): No, that
would -- a satellite would never be an option for
delivering this type of service.

MR, ASHTON: So if you're kicked
off, it's sayonara for the recipients in that
area. |Is that fair to say?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Well, in the
Wor st -case scenario in the short termonly. W --
we have had a great deal of success with renewal s
of our | eases when they do cone due. W have been

providing this type of service in | easing 20-year
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| eases for 20 to 25 -- we went to 25 even nore
recently -- for about 30 years now. So we've gone
t hrough a great deal of renewals, if not al nost
every site in our systemto date.

MR, ASHTON: In the course of a
year |i ke 2016 how many renewal s have you execut ed
that take you out of this 20-year or 25-year hol e?

THE W TNESS (Befera): W -- we
have -- our success rate of renewals in what we
woul d consider the western half of New England in
whi ch Connecticut is part, we have renewed in
excess of 500 | eases over the course of the past
10 to 15 years.

MR, ASHTON: Ckay. What percent is
t hat of the | eases that have cone due?

THE W TNESS (Befera): That's
probabl y about 98 percent of them W have, I1'd
say -- M. Ashton, we also have in certain
Instances if a landlord wants to hold you host age
at the end of the existing term whether it be a
rooftop cell site or whether it be a ground-based
cell site, we have a relocation program where we
end up relocating rather than paying the ransom

MR ASHTON: |'msure that's the

case and we've seen sone of it. GCkay. | don't
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want to flog a dead horse, but | have to raise
this as a significant concern on ny part as a
Counci | nenber.

You have a nice site here in that
there's, as | look at the print, there's m ninal

cuts and feel s. You can al nost take it out in a

coupl e of wheel barrow |l ocads. | want to give you a
heads up that -- Ken, I'mlooking at you a little
bit -- that when we get into sone sites where

there's a fair anmount of cutting |I'm going to be
| ooking to see whether or not that cut, those cuts
can be di sposed of on site and you can use them as

a bermin effect to hide all the claptrap | ower

down.

| don't think that's clearly
warranted here, not fromwhat | read, anyway. But
if I can make it to the next hearing that will be

a question |I'm probably going to ask.

Fencing, | assune we've got a nice
climb -- what's the word proof? What's the word
for fencing that you can't clinb?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine):

Anti -cl i nmbi ng?

MR, ASHTON: Anti-clinbing or

hi gh-security level fencing. | couldn't see
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anything in the application. Two-inch or |ess
t han two-i nch nmesh?

THE W TNESS (Roberts): Yes,
we'll -- we'll make sure on the D and Mwe're
going to use the anti-clinbing fence.

MR. ASHTON: And lastly, there's
sonething in this application that absolutely
stopped ne in ny tracks.

Not hi ng wong, nothing at all, but
if you go to tab 18 and you go into the very back
of tab 18 on what is page 13, there was a nane
there that | couldn't conceive of. It sounds Ilike
sonet hi ng out of the Boston Bay Colony. And the
name is Twice WIlling. |Is that a real nane, you
know, I'm Twice WIIling?

I s sonebody pulling our leg here a
little bit, or what?

MR. BALDW N.  Per haps bad
par enti ng.

MR ASHTON: l'msorry?

MR, BALDW N  Bad parenting. |
don't know, M. Ashton.

MR ASHTON: | don't know. | had
read that and | said, that can't be, but you're

telling ne | guess it is. M. Baldwn is going to
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testify to the best of his know edge and beli ef
that is a valid nane.

I have not hing further,

M. Chairman. Thank you very nuch.

THE CHAI RVAN:  Thank you.

M. Lynch?

MR LYNCH: Let's see. M. Befera,
I'd like to revisit before what you said about the
contracts and, you know, selling or giving up your
t ower .

We've had a lot of certificate
transfers of late and maybe this is a | egal
question, but you know, would the new owner be
obligated to honor a contract if we nmade it a
condition of the siting?

THE W TNESS (Befera): O the
permtting, regulatory?

MR LYNCH: Yes.

THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes, if it's
a condition of the existence of the tower to begin
with, that goes with it. They would have no
recourse. They would not be able to say no
because the alternative situation in that case
woul d be, then take that tower down because that,

you got the approval with this condition. |If you
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don't honor this condition no tower. They won't
want that.

MR LYNCH. That make sense.

MR BALDWN | think it satisfies
bot h the contractual obligation between the
transferor, Verizon wireless, the transferee,
whoever that is.

But they're also transferring the
certificate and that's where | think the Council
cones into play. |If you' ve got a condition of
your approval that is now transferred to this new
owner they're obligated to conply with those
conditions just as we woul d.

MR. LYNCH. Not being an attorney,
| wanted to know that for sure.

Let's see. A couple things | want
to get clarified before | get into sone of the
other questions. The first one is does the --
your buying or takeover of Yahoo influence what's
happening within the wirel ess Veri zon systen?

THE W TNESS (Befera): | have no
I dea, however | can't see how the two are rel ated
ot her than on a technical on technol ogi cal basis.
That has really nothing to do with the wrel ess

services that we provide at this tine.
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MR. LYNCH. Seeing that you're now
operating their Internet, that won't cone over,
switch over to tablets or cell phones in the
future? O could it?

THE W TNESS (Befera): It very well
could. | think there are a | ot of technol ogies
that we offer today that we never even dreaned of
when we started doing this business in anal og 30

year s ago.

MR, LYNCH. That's on ny list, too.

The second one, before | get to that part of it,
which is GPS -- because the, you know, M. Ashton
referenced 20 years ago where we we're close to
state |ines, one state had one band and one state
had t he ot her band and you had to tilt your
antennas. |Is that scenario still in place?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): That's
effective only across the 850 band, which |I'm not
consi dering deploying right now. \Wen we do
deploy it we'll probably set up an agreenent and
shift things around a little bit to have room for
t hat .

MR LYNCH Ckay. | was just
wonderi ng whet her that was the case or not

anynore. And the other thing I noticed, and in
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the application, is this tower is going to have
GPS. And |'mlooking at A2, behind tab 1. Nowis
that incorporated in the antennas? O is that a
separate part of the antenna array here, the GPS?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Well, the
GPS systemis a function of the equi pnent | ocate,
you know, the equi pnent |ocation. And typically
the GPS is not nounted with the antenna array up
hi gh unl ess there's shading from surroundi ng trees
or structures. Typically we nounted it on the ice
bri dge which goes fromthe --

MR LYNCH: | know what the ice
bridge is.

And now you have to educate ne
here, too. You answered M. Ashton saying that
you're not using any type of satellite. Isn't GPS
a satellite systenf

THE W TNESS (Befera): Okay. Well
In that sense, the -- yeah. |In that sense the GPS
gets its information fromsatellite, yes, but ny
answer to M. Ashton was in reference to us
delivering our services through satellite.

MR LYNCH: And the reason | ask is
I was driving around New Hanpshire, the Portsnouth

Naval Yard | ast week and everyone in the car was
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telling ne where to go on their cell phones. They
told ne a few other places to go, too, but that's
anot her story.

Now al so I'm going to reference
questi on nunber 7 and this is going to be a little
softball for you. Now they reference the
flush-nmount antennas. Aren't flush-nount antennas
pretty nmuch, you know, obsol ete now as far as
bei ng functi onal ?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): The new
t echnol ogi es that cone about require us to have
specific spacing, and it's by frequency you have
your spatial diversity.

MR. LYNCH. | know how t hey
operate. M question is, are they really with al
t he new technol ogies, all the frequencies, 700, is
it really worth, you know, using flush nount as
opposed to a full array of the antennas or T-arnms?

|'ve noticed that sone towers that
originally were flush nounted have now been, you
know, set up where they're full platforns now
i nstead of flush nmount. So ny question really is,
are they really obsol ete?

THE WTNESS (Paradis): | would say

that they're not, but deploying them would cost
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you -- it would cost you your transm ssion. So it
woul d be -- perfornmance would go down and | don't
know why anybody woul d choose that if they had the
opti on.

For us, better matters and we woul d
go --

MR, LYNCH. But froma practical
busi ness standpoi nt, you know, and to reach all
your custoners with, you know, stream ng and all
t hese new things that are com ng out, you know, I
guess that's it, obviously. They're not really
practical anynore, just is a better ternf

THE WTNESS (Paradis): | would say
yes, because the technol ogi es that have advanced
us have been those that are going to use spati al
diversity to allow us to have nore than one stream
of information that we can conpare them

And things cone in nuch cl eaner
that way and we don't have problens with dropping
calls because of that. So your quality is nmuch,
nmuch better and that's a big concern. So | would
steer towards quality rather than away fromit.

MR, LYNCH. And you al so state
wthin the application that you're just going to

be runni ng on 7007
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THE WTNESS (Paradis): Initially,
correct.

MR LYNCH. But are you going to
set up the antenna array so that, you know, you
could go to 1900 or 1200 or 850 in the future? O
woul d you cone back and add themlater if you
want ?

THE WTNESS (Paradis): Initially
we would set it up for 3 bands, the 700, 1900 and
2100. And then we would then that consider what
850 i s.

Li ke I nentioned before, 850 is
going to be going through sone changes in the
future and we woul d know nore of what to do wth
what type of antenna, the |license, the band and
how nmuch we're going to get and what the band is
goi ng to be.

So those are things that are still
yet devel oped. So to put sonething up there now
would not -- it would fill space, but it wouldn't
hel p us with our output.

MR LYNCH:. And questi on nunber 20,
t hey' re asking about dropped calls. Now with the
new t echnol ogy, especially stuff going to the

tablets and to the phones that are stream ng, or
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you know, if | wanted to watch the G ants Sunday.

| don't know why | would, but if | wanted to watch
the G ants on Sunday. You know, does that work as
a dropped call, whipping blanks out? O is that
just a disruption in service of sone type?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): Wll, they
have different categories where you may have
sonet hi ng that can reconnect within a certain
amount of tinme, but you' ve | ost possible quality
of that call. O you couldn't connect anywhere
el se and had to drop.

So it does an algorithmthat it
goes through to find out if there's another tower
that it can latch onto. And it tries to reconnect
wth the first tower it was on, and if it can't do
t hose things then it has nowhere to go and it has
to drop.

MR. LYNCH. Now there's a question
here, | forget where, on small cell sites that
you' ve been putting all over the place. Do they
need a base cell site to work off of? O can
t hey, you know, be set up in a way that they can
stand al one?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): Currently

our design is noving forward so that we would Ii ke
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to have all of our small cells and nmacro sites
talk to each other.

So we have to bring those all back
to a central |ocation where they can then have
speed and accuracy on deci sion-nmaking that say
where and when you're going to pick up that cel
tower or snmall cell, who's the best, what's --
what's the frequency that's being requested and so
on. But they have to all be clunped together in
order for us to do that.

So | would say that having an
I ndependent small cell would be contrary to that
phi | osophy that we're noving to.

MR LYNCH: That's what | was
thinking. | just wanted to verify that. Thank
you.

And now M. Libertine, how far are
you from Route 101, seeing that as soneone who
drives back and forth to Providence all the tine |
want to nmake sure | can get through all the tine?

THE W TNESS (Libertine): As the
crow flies, Route 101 fromthe site itself is
about a mle and a quarter as it traverses east to
west, north of the site at its cl osest point.

MR. LYNCH: |s the fact that Route
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101 -- or one of the only northern routes to get
to Providence?

THE W TNESS (Li bertine): Right.

MR LYNCH. | can see why this
woul d be an inportant cell site.

THE W TNESS (Li bertine):

Absolutely. Yeah, if you're on
Route 6, as you know, there are a few towers
covering that, but 101 is pretty spotty.

MR LYNCH And | want to cone to
t he enmergency generator for a second. And | see
there's kind of a newtwist to this one, that the
battery backup -- | nean, the generator is going
to power the battery backup on the system and not
the cell tower. Can you explain that to nme?

THE W TNESS (Befera): The
equi pnent that we use now doesn't actually -- it
doesn't require the sane | evel of power that the
ol der equi pnent used to use. |It's nore efficient.
So we're able to use a snaller generator than we

have in the past to back it up.

Now the way that -- and it's a DC
generator. The equi pnent runs off of -- runs off
DC. It's cleaner, it's snoother and the equi pnent

Is very sensitive. So the way that it's |ined up
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electrically and wired is that the generator in
the case of a power outage with a DC generator
after one mnute of constant outage would kick in.
And where it would feed the backup supply power
woul d be to the line between the batteries and the
power pl ant, and out of the powerplant is what

f eeds the equi pnent.

So the batteries are al ways
charged, but to deliver that current clean with
the DC generator it goes between the connection
bet ween the batteries and the powerplant, which in
turn convert it, which deliver the DC power to the
equi pment itself.

It's not like a situation where the
batteries drain ever unless there's a generator
failure, and in the case of a power outage. |'m
not sure if | answered your question or not.

MR LYNCH Well, | think |
understand part of it, but I"'mstill confused
where you're actually powering the battery system
s that what you're saying, you know, to run the
cell site?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Well, in a
way, but the commrercial AC cones into the

power pl ant and the batteries are, |like, are off as
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a backup.

Now it's through the powerpl ant
that that ACis converted to the DC which is
delivered to the equipnent. And the batteries,
bet ween the battery and the powerpl ant you' ve got
it heading in both directions, which is why the DC
generator hooks into that.

MR LYNCH | think | can foll ow
you there, but on the maintenance schedule for the
energency batteries | think you nentioned, I|ike,
once a nonth or once a week they start it, you
know, and run it for 20 m nutes or a half hour or
sonet hi ng.

But ny question, you know, is there
a schedule for topping off and refueling that tank
so that in case, you know, hurricane Matthew cane
up here, you know, would we be running to top of
t hat tank?

THE W TNESS (Befera): W do. W
do di saster recovery preparation in situations
li ke that where we maintain the fuel |evels around
80 percent, typically.

MR LYNCH. But let me go back. |Is
there a routine nornal schedule for going up and

checking what the volune is in that tank?
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THE W TNESS (Befera): Yes. W
have -- we have nmai ntenance prograns for all of
our ancillary equi pnent, whether it be battery
mai nt enance or whether it be generator
mai nt enance.

MR LYNCH: Now is the fuel in the
tank nonitored on site, or is it nonitored
renmotel y?

THE W TNESS (Befera): Renotely, or
of course on-site.

MR LYNCH. Ckay.

THE W TNESS (Befera): W have | ow
fuel al arns.

MR. LYNCH. Those are ny questions,
M. Chair man.

THE CHAI RVAN:  Thank you.

M. Hannon?

MR. BALDW N:. Thank you, M.
Chai r man.

No, the only questions | really had
were answered on the field, and it was a
clarification on the wetl ands which they started
Wit h.

THE CHAI RVAN. Ckay. Thank you.

M. Lu.
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MR LU Thank you, M. Chairman.
| just have one questi on.

It's ny understanding that Cell co
wll be initially deploying at the 700 negahertz
band. |'mjust wonderi ng when the conpany
anti ci pates depl oying the 1900 and 2100 negahertz
bands?

THE W TNESS (Paradis): At this
current time the cell site that |I'mdesigning this
to hel p doesn't have an AW5 carrier or PCS
carrier. So there is none of that in the area, so
700 is the only consideration that |I'm | ooki ng at
right now So that's the only thing we're doing
any projections on.

If we had AWS depl oyed at t hat
site, which we will at a |ater date, then we woul d
evaluate it and see if there was a need to offl oad
anything nore. And if we couldn't do it wth our
700 frequency we would then nove into the other
frequency, probably in the order of AWS and NPCS.

MR LU  Okay. Thank you.

That's all | have, M. Chairman.

THE CHAI RVAN: Ckay. Just a couple
of things. One is just a mnor thing, but on your

coverage maps in addition to having the correct
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description of it, it would really help at | east
me in trying to find the existing site if you
woul d use a synmbol or a color of a synbol that
woul d stand out a little bit nore than that
purple. Sone of the other colors stand out a
little better. So | just would have saved sone
time hunting for that.

Regarding | think the interesting
i ssue that Dr. Klenens raised about fire, ny guess
Is that you haven't had tinme, but you can correct
me if 1"'mwong, to properly answer the question
now. But let ne give you a couple of suggestions,
not suggested answers.

But I think first of all, | think
it is a good question particularly if dry
conditions, you know, continue. |'m sure that
Veri zon has places, if not around here, but in the
West where that is of concern. So they nust have,
you know, there must be ways that they deal wth
it.

But ny way of having the Siting
Council deal with this is if -- and | enphasize
if, if the Siting Council were to approve this
project -- of course if we were to deny it that's

the end of the discussion, but if we were to
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approve it, I think in your D and M plan you could
provide informati on on how you mght -- if you
agree that's an i ssue, how you m ght deal with
that. So that's the way 1'd |like to handl e that.

Lastly, just a question and | don't
want to open up too nuch here, but on the issue of
batteries for backup, have you or are you
considering in the future using a battery, maybe
tying it into a snmall solar array and keeping the
batteri es charged that way, maybe ultimtely
reduci ng the anmount of diesel fuel that's
necessary?

And if the answer is no, | think
that's sonething you m ght want to consi der
sonet hi ng?

THE W TNESS (Befera): |'m not
aware of our innovative fol ks nmoving in that
direction. That doesn't nean that they aren't
| ooking intoit. | would not know that.

Il -- I'"mnot aware of any units
t hat operate in that fashion that the solar power
can provide the necessary power to keep a site
running. So |'mnot aware of us noving in the
di recti on.

THE CHAI RMAN:. Again, | don't want
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to get it prolonged other than to say technol ogy
both in the area of batteries and in the area of
sol ar i s advanci ng, perhaps sonetines faster than
even our innovative people can deal with. So it
m ght be sonething to consider.

| don't know if there are any other
questions fromany -- if not, we'll recess at this
point and we'll reconvene for the public session
at 7 p.m Thank you.

(Wher eupon, the w tnesses were
excused and the above proceedi ngs were concl uded

at 4:01 p.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

| hereby certify that the foregoing 52 pages
are a conplete and accurate conputer-ai ded
transcription of my original verbatimnotes taken
of the Siting Council Hearing in Re: Docket No.
469, APPLI CATI ON FROM CELLCO PARTNERSHI P D/ B/ A
VERI ZON FOR A CERTI FI CATE OF ENVI RONVENTAL
COVPATI BI LI TY AND PUBLI C NEED FOR THE
CONSTRUCTI ON, MAI NTENANCE, AND OPERATI ON OF A
TELECOVMUNI CATI ONS FACI LI TY LOCATED AT 520 BAI LEY
H LL ROAD KI LLI NGY, CONNECTI CUT, which was hel d
before ROBIN STEIN, Chairman, at the Killingly
City Hall, Town Meeting Room 172 Main Street,

Killingly, Connecticut, Thursday, October 6, 2016.

Robert G D xon, CVR-M 857
Not ary Public

BCT Reporting, LLC

PO Box 1774

Bristol, Connecticut 06011

My Conmm ssion Expires: 6/30/2020

53




© o0 ~N oo o b~ w N

N N N N N o o e
oa A~ W N P O © 00 N oo 0o~ O w N -+ O

I NDEX
W TNESSES
Ant hony Bef era
Ray Luke Paradis
Dougl as J. Roberts

M chael Li bertine

Dean Gust af son -

EXAM NATI ON

M. Perrone -

Page 7

Page 12

54




	Index
	 Number Index
	0
	06103-3597 (1)

	1
	1 (7)
	10 (2)
	101 (4)
	12 (2)
	1200 (1)
	13 (2)
	15 (1)
	150 (6)
	150-foot (1)
	154 (1)
	16 (1)
	160 (2)
	17 (1)
	18 (2)
	1900 (3)
	1D (1)
	1st (1)

	2
	2 (3)
	20 (7)
	20-year (2)
	2016 (4)
	2100 (2)
	222 (1)
	222F (1)
	25 (2)
	25-year (1)
	26 (2)
	280 (1)

	3
	3 (4)
	30 (3)
	33 (1)

	4
	4 (4)
	425 (1)
	4:01 (1)

	5
	5 (1)
	500 (3)
	520 (1)

	6
	6 (5)
	600 (1)
	65 (1)
	674 (1)
	69 (1)

	7
	7 (5)
	70-foot (1)
	700 (6)

	8
	8 (1)
	80 (1)
	850 (4)

	9
	98(1)


	A
	A1 (1)
	A2 (1)
	abandoned (1)
	ability (1)
	able (6)
	above (2)
	absolutely (3)
	AC (2)
	access (7)
	accessibly (1)
	accordance (1)
	Accordingly (1)
	account (1)
	accounting (1)
	accuracy (1)
	accurate (1)
	acres (1)
	across (2)
	Act (1)
	activities (1)
	actually (8)
	add (1)
	addition (1)
	additional (3)
	address (2)
	adequate (1)
	Administrative (1)
	administratively (2)
	admitted (1)
	adopt (1)
	advanced (1)
	advancing (1)
	advent (1)
	affidavit (2)
	afternoon (4)
	afternoon's (1)
	again (5)
	agenda (1)
	ago (3)
	agree (3)
	agreement (1)
	ain't (1)
	alarming (3)
	alarms (1)
	algorithm (1)
	All-Points (1)
	allow (2)
	allows (1)
	almost (3)
	aloft (1)
	alone (1)
	along (2)
	alternative (1)
	although (1)
	always (4)
	amount (3)
	analog (1)
	analysis (3)
	analyst (1)
	ancillary (1)
	answered (3)
	antenna (5)
	antennas (6)
	Anti-climbing (3)
	anticipates (1)
	anymore (2)
	applicant (10)
	application (11)
	appreciate (1)
	approval (3)
	approve (2)
	approved (1)
	approximate (1)
	approximately (3)
	approximation (1)
	APT (1)
	area (17)
	areas (4)
	arose (1)
	around (11)
	array (5)
	Ashton (20)
	assigned (1)
	assist (1)
	associated (2)
	assume (1)
	assumed (1)
	assumption (1)
	attention (2)
	Attorney (4)
	Authority (1)
	availability (1)
	available (3)
	average (5)
	avoid (1)
	aware (3)
	awareness (1)
	away (1)
	AWS (3)

	B
	Bachman (1)
	back (7)
	backup (5)
	bad (3)
	Bailey (4)
	BALDWIN (34)
	balloon (8)
	Balm (1)
	band (6)
	bands (2)
	bank (2)
	bare (2)
	barren (1)
	barrier (1)
	base (1)
	based (2)
	basically (2)
	basis (1)
	basking (1)
	batteries (10)
	battery (6)
	Bay (1)
	bear (1)
	become (1)
	Befera (35)
	begin (2)
	behalf (1)
	behind (2)
	belief (1)
	below (1)
	benefit (1)
	berm (1)
	best (4)
	better (4)
	big (2)
	bit (9)
	blanks (1)
	blob (1)
	bolts (1)
	Boston (1)
	both (6)
	bottom (2)
	boundaries (1)
	boundary (1)
	breakouts (1)
	bridge (2)
	brief (1)
	bring (1)
	brought (1)
	brush (1)
	bucks (1)
	building (5)
	burning (1)
	business (3)
	buying (1)

	C
	calculations (2)
	call (5)
	called (3)
	calls (2)
	came (1)
	Can (22)
	capital (1)
	car (1)
	carrier (3)
	carriers (1)
	case (9)
	categories (1)
	Cell (14)
	CELLCO (5)
	cellphones (2)
	cells (1)
	center (1)
	central (1)
	certain (2)
	Certainly (3)
	certificate (3)
	CHAIRMAN (25)
	changed (1)
	changes (1)
	characteristics (2)
	charge (1)
	charged (2)
	checking (1)
	choose (1)
	citizen (1)
	claptrap (1)
	clarification (3)
	clarifications (3)
	clarified (1)
	clarify (1)
	clean (1)
	cleaner (2)
	clear (5)
	cleared (1)
	clearing (2)
	clearly (1)
	clerk's (1)
	climb (2)
	close (2)
	closest (1)
	clumped (1)
	code (4)
	COLE (2)
	collocating (2)
	Colony (1)
	color (1)
	colors (1)
	coming (1)
	comment (4)
	comments (2)
	commercial (1)
	communication (2)
	community (4)
	company (5)
	company's (1)
	compare (1)
	compatibility (1)
	comply (1)
	compound (7)
	comptonia (1)
	computer (2)
	conceive (1)
	concern (5)
	concluded (1)
	condition (8)
	conditioned (1)
	conditions (3)
	confident (1)
	confused (1)
	connect (1)
	Connecticut (10)
	connection (1)
	cons (1)
	consequences (1)
	conservationist (1)
	conservative (1)
	consider (5)
	consideration (1)
	considered (1)
	considering (2)
	constant (1)
	construction (3)
	consultants (1)
	contained (1)
	contemplating (1)
	continue (2)
	contract (3)
	contractor (2)
	contracts (1)
	contractual (1)
	contrary (1)
	control (1)
	convenience (1)
	convert (1)
	converted (1)
	Convincing (1)
	copies (2)
	corner (1)
	Corporation (1)
	correction (1)
	corrections (5)
	cost (3)
	Council (15)
	Council's (2)
	Councilmember (1)
	couple (5)
	course (6)
	coverage (1)
	covering (1)
	crane (2)
	cross-examination (1)
	crow (1)
	crushed (1)
	current (3)
	currently (3)
	customers (1)
	cut (1)
	cuts (2)
	cutting (1)

	D
	d/b/a (2)
	data (5)
	date (4)
	day (1)
	days (1)
	dB (1)
	DC (7)
	dead (1)
	deal (6)
	dealing (1)
	Dean (2)
	decide (1)
	decision-making (1)
	defection (2)
	deliver (2)
	delivered (1)
	delivering (2)
	densely (1)
	density (1)
	deny (2)
	Department (1)
	deploy (1)
	deployed (1)
	deploying (4)
	deposited (1)
	depressed (1)
	depression (1)
	depressional (2)
	describe (2)
	description (1)
	Design (2)
	designee (2)
	designing (1)
	details (1)
	developed (1)
	development (2)
	diameter (1)
	diesel (1)
	different (1)
	differently (1)
	difficult (1)
	direction (2)
	directions (1)
	Director (3)
	disaster (1)
	discussion (1)
	disposed (1)
	disruption (1)
	distance (2)
	distant (1)
	distinction (1)
	diversity (2)
	do/prevent (1)
	docket (1)
	documentation (1)
	documented (1)
	documents (1)
	done (3)
	door (1)
	Doug (3)
	down (4)
	Dr (13)
	drain (1)
	drained (1)
	drawing (1)
	drawings (1)
	dreamed (1)
	drives (1)
	driving (2)
	drop (2)
	dropped (2)
	dropping (2)
	dry (1)
	due (2)
	duly (1)
	duration (1)
	during (4)

	E
	earlier (2)
	easement (1)
	east (1)
	eastern (1)
	ecology (2)
	educate (1)
	effect (1)
	effective (1)
	efficient (1)
	electrically (1)
	elevations (1)
	else (1)
	emergency (4)
	emphasize (1)
	employ (1)
	encumbering (1)
	end (8)
	Energy (1)
	engineer (1)
	engineering (1)
	engineers (2)
	England (1)
	ensure (1)
	entire (1)
	Environmental (3)
	equipment (16)
	especially (1)
	ESQ (1)
	established (1)
	Estate (2)
	evaluate (1)
	even (4)
	evening (1)
	everyone (1)
	evidentiary (1)
	exactly (2)
	examined (1)
	example (1)
	excellent (1)
	excess (1)
	excuse (3)
	excused (1)
	executed (1)
	Executive (2)
	Exhibit (1)
	exhibits (7)
	exist (1)
	existence (1)
	existing (6)
	expenditures (1)
	expense (1)
	experience (2)
	explain (1)
	expressed (1)
	exterior (1)
	extremely (1)

	F
	fabric (2)
	facility (10)
	fact (2)
	failure (1)
	fair (2)
	fairly (1)
	far (4)
	fashion (1)
	fast (1)
	faster (1)
	feed (1)
	feeds (1)
	feels (1)
	feet (10)
	felt (1)
	female (1)
	fence (1)
	Fencing (3)
	fern (1)
	few (7)
	field (8)
	fill (1)
	find (5)
	fine (1)
	fire (5)
	fires (1)
	first (8)
	five (2)
	five-year (1)
	flexibility (1)
	flies (2)
	flight (1)
	flog (1)
	flush (3)
	flush-mount (2)
	fly (1)
	folks (1)
	follow (1)
	follow-up (1)
	following (1)
	follows (2)
	forested (1)
	forestland (2)
	forget (1)
	former (1)
	forms (1)
	forth (2)
	forward (2)
	four (3)
	frequencies (1)
	frequency (5)
	friends (1)
	front (3)
	fuel (4)
	full (8)
	function (1)
	functional (1)
	funding (2)
	further (2)
	future (4)

	G
	gate (1)
	General (1)
	generally (3)
	generator (10)
	gentlemen (1)
	gets (2)
	Giants (2)
	Gilead (1)
	GIS (1)
	given (4)
	gives (1)
	giving (1)
	glacial (1)
	goes (5)
	Good (4)
	GPS (7)
	grade (1)
	gravid (1)
	Great (8)
	ground-based (1)
	Group (1)
	growth (1)
	guess (6)
	guide (1)
	Gustafson (14)
	gusts (1)

	H
	habitat (6)
	habitats (1)
	half (2)
	Hampshire (1)
	hand (1)
	handle (1)
	Hannon (2)
	happen (1)
	happening (1)
	Hartford (1)
	heading (1)
	heads (1)
	heard (1)
	hearing (9)
	height (13)
	held (1)
	helium-filled (1)
	help (3)
	hereof (1)
	hide (1)
	high (1)
	high-security (1)
	Hill (6)
	historic (1)
	hognose (2)
	hognosed (6)
	hold (1)
	hole (1)
	honor (3)
	hooks (1)
	hope (2)
	horse (1)
	hostage (1)
	hour (3)
	houses (1)
	Hudson (1)
	hundred (1)
	hundred-by-hundred (1)
	hunting (1)
	hurricane (1)
	hydraulic (1)

	I
	ice (2)
	idea (1)
	identification (1)
	identified (2)
	Implementation (1)
	important (2)
	inches (2)
	included (1)
	including (2)
	incorporated (1)
	incorrect (1)
	incorrectly (1)
	increase (1)
	incremental (1)
	independent (1)
	indicated (1)
	individual (1)
	influence (1)
	information (6)
	Initially (3)
	innovative (2)
	inputs (1)
	installing (1)
	instance (1)
	instances (1)
	instead (2)
	interest (2)
	interesting (3)
	Internet (1)
	interrogatories (1)
	interrogatory (1)
	intervening (1)
	into (13)
	invariably (1)
	inventory (1)
	investigation (2)
	Island (2)
	issue (3)
	issues (3)
	item (2)
	items (5)

	J
	JE (1)
	Jeremiah (3)
	join (1)
	judgment (1)
	July (1)

	K
	keep (2)
	keeping (2)
	Ken (1)
	KENNETH (2)
	kick (1)
	kicked (3)
	Killingly (3)
	kind (7)
	Klemens (13)
	knowledge (3)

	L
	labeled (1)
	ladies (1)
	lake (1)
	landlord (1)
	landscaping (1)
	large (1)
	larger (2)
	last (2)
	lastly (2)
	latch (1)
	late (1)
	later (2)
	latest (1)
	law (1)
	layers (1)
	leaf (1)
	lease (4)
	leases (4)
	leasing (1)
	least (1)
	leave (1)
	left (2)
	leg (1)
	legal (1)
	legend (1)
	length (2)
	less (3)
	level (2)
	levels (1)
	Libertine (27)
	license (1)
	lidar (3)
	limitation (1)
	limitations (1)
	limited (1)
	line (2)
	lined (1)
	lines (1)
	list (1)
	listed (3)
	little (15)
	LLC (2)
	LLP (1)
	loads (1)
	locate (1)
	located (3)
	location (4)
	locator (2)
	long (4)
	longer (1)
	look (4)
	looking (12)
	looks (1)
	lost (1)
	lot (7)
	low (1)
	lower (1)
	Lu (4)
	Luke (1)
	Lynch (31)

	M
	M-a-s-h-e-n-t-u-c-k (1)
	M-i-r-a-f-i (1)
	macro (2)
	main (1)
	maintain (1)
	maintained (5)
	maintenance (5)
	Manager (1)
	many (3)
	map (5)
	maps (2)
	marked (1)
	Mashentuck (2)
	matters (1)
	Matthew (1)
	may (5)
	maybe (6)
	mean (5)
	means (2)
	measures (1)
	mechanism (1)
	meeting (1)
	megahertz (2)
	Melanie (1)
	member (2)
	members (3)
	mention (1)
	mentioned (4)
	mentions (1)
	merits (1)
	mesh (1)
	midpart (1)
	might (5)
	Mike (4)
	mile (1)
	miles (2)
	million (1)
	mind (2)
	minimal (1)
	minor (1)
	minute (1)
	minutes (1)
	Mirafi (1)
	miscellaneous (1)
	model (2)
	models (2)
	modification (1)
	modifications (1)
	modulation (1)
	money (1)
	monitored (2)
	monopole (1)
	month (1)
	months (1)
	more (14)
	morning (1)
	most (4)
	mount (2)
	Mountain (2)
	mounted (3)
	move (1)
	moving (5)
	MPE (1)
	much (14)
	municipal (2)
	must (2)
	myrica (1)

	N
	name (5)
	nature (1)
	Naval (1)
	NDDB (1)
	near (3)
	nearby (1)
	nearest (4)
	necessary (3)
	need (7)
	neighbors (1)
	new (13)
	next (4)
	nice (2)
	noise (1)
	none (4)
	nonetheless (1)
	normal (1)
	north (1)
	northern (1)
	note (1)
	noticed (4)
	notices (1)
	nowhere (1)
	NPCS (1)
	number (5)
	numeral (1)
	nuts (1)

	O
	oak (3)
	oath (2)
	oaths (1)
	objection (1)
	obligated (2)
	obligation (1)
	observe (1)
	obsolete (2)
	obtain (1)
	obviously (1)
	October (2)
	odd (1)
	off (14)
	off-site (1)
	off-the-record (1)
	offer (6)
	office (1)
	offload (1)
	old (1)
	older (1)
	on-property (1)
	on-site (3)
	once (3)
	one (21)
	only (10)
	onto (1)
	open (3)
	operate (3)
	operating (1)
	operations (1)
	opportunity (1)
	opposed (2)
	option (4)
	options (1)
	oral (1)
	order (3)
	originally (3)
	others (1)
	otherwise (1)
	out (15)
	outage (3)
	output (1)
	over (8)
	owned (3)
	owner (5)

	P
	page (6)
	panel (1)
	Paradis (20)
	parcel (1)
	parenting (2)
	part (8)
	particular (2)
	particularly (1)
	PARTNERSHIP (4)
	past (4)
	Pasture (1)
	pattern (1)
	paying (2)
	PCS (1)
	people (1)
	percent (5)
	performance (1)
	performed (1)
	perhaps (3)
	period (3)
	periodically (1)
	periods (1)
	permanent (1)
	Permitting (2)
	Perrone (26)
	philosophy (1)
	phones (1)
	photo (3)
	pick (1)
	pieces (1)
	pine (3)
	pinkies (1)
	pitch (2)
	place (2)
	places (2)
	placing (2)
	Plainfield (1)
	plan (2)
	plans (1)
	plant (1)
	plants (1)
	platform (2)
	platforms (1)
	play (1)
	Please (2)
	plus (1)
	pm (6)
	podium (1)
	point (4)
	pond (3)
	populated (2)
	populates (1)
	portion (3)
	portions (1)
	Portsmouth (1)
	position (1)
	possible (2)
	posted (1)
	posting (1)
	potential (2)
	potentially (2)
	power (10)
	powering (1)
	powerplant (6)
	practical (2)
	precautions (1)
	precise (1)
	precision (1)
	prefabricated (1)
	preparation (2)
	prepare (1)
	prepared (1)
	present (3)
	press (1)
	pretty (4)
	prevent (1)
	preventing (1)
	pride (1)
	primary (1)
	print (1)
	private (1)
	probably (7)
	problem (2)
	problems (1)
	Procedure (1)
	procedures (1)
	proceed (1)
	proceeding (1)
	proceedings (1)
	professional (1)
	program (4)
	programs (1)
	prohibited (1)
	Project (6)
	projections (1)
	projects (1)
	prolonged (1)
	promise (1)
	proof (1)
	propagated (1)
	propagation (1)
	properly (1)
	properties (1)
	property (11)
	propose (1)
	proposed (8)
	pros (1)
	protect (3)
	protected (1)
	Protection (2)
	protections (1)
	protective (1)
	provide (3)
	provided (1)
	Providence (2)
	providing (1)
	provisions (1)
	Public (9)
	pulling (1)
	purchase (1)
	purchasing (1)
	purely (1)
	purple (1)
	purposes (2)
	pursuant (1)
	put (6)
	putting (2)

	Q
	qualified (1)
	quality (3)
	quarter (2)
	quarters (1)

	R
	radio (1)
	radiofrequency (1)
	radius (1)
	raise (1)
	raised (2)
	raises (1)
	range (2)
	ranges (2)
	ransom (1)
	rash (1)
	rate (1)
	rather (3)
	Ray (1)
	reach (1)
	read (3)
	Real (5)
	really (13)
	reason (4)
	reasonable (1)
	receive (1)
	received (2)
	recently (3)
	recess (2)
	recipients (1)
	recommendations (1)
	reconnect (2)
	reconvene (1)
	record (4)
	recourse (2)
	recovery (1)
	recreational (1)
	red (1)
	reducing (1)
	reduction (1)
	reference (4)
	referenced (2)
	referred (1)
	reflect (2)
	reflected (3)
	refueling (1)
	regarding (5)
	Regulatory (2)
	related (1)
	relocating (1)
	relocation (1)
	remains (1)
	reminder (1)
	remotely (2)
	remove (1)
	removed (1)
	renewals (4)
	renewed (2)
	rent (1)
	representative (1)
	requested (2)
	requests (1)
	require (2)
	requires (1)
	reserved (1)
	residential (1)
	resource (3)
	resources (4)
	respect (1)
	responses (1)
	responsible (1)
	restrictions (1)
	restrictive (1)
	resume (1)
	reversed (1)
	review (1)
	revisit (1)
	RF (1)
	Rhode (2)
	right (11)
	right-hand (1)
	rise (1)
	Road (5)
	roads (4)
	Roberts (20)
	Robin (1)
	ROBINSON (2)
	robust (1)
	Roman (3)
	rooftop (1)
	room (1)
	roundabout (1)
	Route (4)
	routes (1)
	routine (1)
	run (3)
	running (3)
	runs (2)

	S
	safety (1)
	salamander (1)
	salamanders (1)
	sale (1)
	salicifolia (1)
	same (3)
	sandy (1)
	satellite (6)
	satisfies (1)
	saved (1)
	saw (2)
	saying (3)
	sayonara (1)
	scaled (2)
	scaled-back (1)
	scattered (1)
	scenario (4)
	scenic (3)
	schedule (3)
	scientist (2)
	scont'd (1)
	scrub (1)
	second (2)
	secretive (1)
	section (1)
	seeing (3)
	seepage (2)
	sell (1)
	selling (1)
	sells (1)
	send (1)
	senior (1)
	sense (3)
	sensitive (1)
	separate (1)
	serotinus (2)
	service (4)
	services (3)
	session (5)
	set (7)
	setback (1)
	several (2)
	shading (1)
	shed (2)
	sheet (1)
	shelter (1)
	shift (1)
	shoreline (1)
	short (1)
	shots (1)
	shoulder (1)
	show (2)
	showing (1)
	shown (2)
	sign (5)
	significant (1)
	significantly (1)
	similar (2)
	simple (1)
	sims (1)
	simulation (1)
	simulations (2)
	site (34)
	sites (8)
	Siting (8)
	situation (2)
	situations (1)
	six (2)
	six-mile (1)
	size (1)
	slope (1)
	small (6)
	small-cell (2)
	smaller (1)
	smoother (1)
	snake (7)
	snakes (1)
	softball (1)
	soil (1)
	soils (1)
	solar (3)
	sold (1)
	somebody (1)
	someone (1)
	sometimes (2)
	somewhat (2)
	sorry (1)
	sort (5)
	sounds (1)
	southeast (1)
	southwest (1)
	space (2)
	spacing (1)
	sparsely (1)
	spatial (2)
	speak (1)
	special (1)
	specific (1)
	speed (2)
	spoken (1)
	spotty (1)
	spring (5)
	springs (1)
	stabilization (1)
	staff (4)
	stand (3)
	standard (3)
	standpoint (1)
	start (1)
	started (2)
	starting (1)
	State (8)
	statement (1)
	statements (4)
	states (1)
	Statutes (1)
	steer (1)
	Stein (1)
	still (5)
	stone (1)
	stopped (1)
	story (1)
	strange (1)
	stream (1)
	streaming (2)
	Street (1)
	strength (1)
	string (2)
	structures (2)
	study (4)
	stuff (2)
	subject (3)
	subsection (1)
	substantial (2)
	success (2)
	suggested (2)
	suggesting (1)
	suggestions (1)
	sun (1)
	Sunday (2)
	supervise (1)
	supply (1)
	support (2)
	sure (6)
	surface (1)
	surrounding (1)
	survey (1)
	Swamp (3)
	sweet (1)
	switch (1)
	sworn (2)
	symbol (2)
	system (12)

	T
	T-arms (1)
	tab (5)
	table (2)
	tablets (2)
	takeover (1)
	talk (1)
	talking (1)
	taller (1)
	tallied (1)
	tank (4)
	tax (1)
	technical (2)
	technically (1)
	technological (1)
	technologies (4)
	Technology (3)
	telecommunications (1)
	telling (2)
	ten (1)
	tend (1)
	tenth (1)
	term (3)
	terms (2)
	testified (1)
	testify (1)
	testimony (1)
	tethered (1)
	thinking (1)
	Though (1)
	thought (1)
	threatened (1)
	three (3)
	throughout (1)
	throw (1)
	throwing (1)
	Thursday (1)
	TIA/EIA (1)
	till (1)
	tilt (1)
	times (1)
	tipped (1)
	Title (1)
	today (5)
	together (1)
	told (2)
	Tony (1)
	took (2)
	top (5)
	topic (1)
	topographic (2)
	topography (1)
	topping (1)
	total (1)
	towards (2)
	tower (24)
	towers (2)
	town (10)
	track (1)
	tracks (1)
	training (1)
	transcript (2)
	transferee (1)
	transferor (1)
	transferred (1)
	transferring (1)
	transfers (1)
	transmission (1)
	traverses (1)
	tree (4)
	treeline (1)
	trees (6)
	Tri-Lakes (2)
	tries (1)
	true (1)
	Trumbull (1)
	trying (3)
	turn (1)
	turning (3)
	Twice (2)
	twist (1)
	two (3)
	Two-inch (2)
	tying (1)
	type (10)
	typical (1)
	typically (4)

	U
	ultimately (1)
	unable (1)
	under (11)
	undeveloped (1)
	unequivocal (1)
	Unfortunately (1)
	Uniform (2)
	unintentional (1)
	units (1)
	unless (2)
	up (26)
	update (1)
	updated (1)
	upon (2)
	use (12)
	used (5)
	using (4)
	Utilities (1)

	V
	vacate (1)
	valid (1)
	value (1)
	various (3)
	vegetation (2)
	venture (1)
	verbatim (1)
	verification (1)
	verify (2)
	VERIZON (10)
	Vermont (1)
	view (2)
	views (1)
	visibility (6)
	volume (1)

	W
	walk (3)
	wants (1)
	warranted (1)
	watch (2)
	water (2)
	way (11)
	ways (1)
	weather (2)
	Weed (1)
	weeds (1)
	week (2)
	weight (1)
	west (3)
	western (1)
	wetland (9)
	wetlands (3)
	what's (6)
	wheelbarrow (1)
	Whereupon (1)
	whipping (1)
	whistles (1)
	who's (1)
	whole (1)
	Willing (2)
	wind (1)
	winds (1)
	wired (1)
	WIRELESS (7)
	wish (2)
	within (9)
	witness (84)
	witnesses (5)
	wondering (2)
	wooded (2)
	word (2)
	work (4)
	worked (1)
	working (1)
	world (2)
	worried (1)
	worst-case (2)
	worth (1)
	written (2)
	wrong (2)

	Y
	Yahoo (1)
	Yard (1)
	year (2)
	years (10)
	yield (1)
	younger (1)

	Z
	zone (1)



